
 
 

ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda 
 
 

Date Wednesday 11 October 2023 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Crompton Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires advice on any 
item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her 
ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul Entwistle or  at 
least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this agenda is  Tel 0161-770-5151.  or email  
Constitutional Services @oldham.gov.uk 
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - Any Member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the contact officer by 12 noon on 9th October 2023 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may record 
/ film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the press 
are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends a meeting 
and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional Services Officer 
who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 
Please also note the Public attendance Protocol on the Council’s Website 
 
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
BOARD 

 Councillors Adams, Ball, Hamblett, J. Harrison, Hobin, S. Hussain, McLaren 
and Moores (Chair) 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings


 
 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair. 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Northern Care Alliance - Care Quality Commission - Inspection Report for 
Oldham (Pages 1 - 8) 

 To receive and consider the following – 
 
(i) CQC Inspection report for Oldham (Appendix 1). 
 
 
(ii) In connection with the Oldham report, the full CQC report circulated at the 
previous Scritiny Board meeting (Appendix 2). 

6   Healthwatch Annual Report 2022-23 (Pages 9 - 38) 

 To receive and consider the Healthwatch Annual report 2022-23. 

 

  

  

  

  

 

  



                                                           
APPENDIX 1 
   

CQC Update  

Oldham Care Organisation 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 
Background  

The unannounced CQC inspection took place on 8 August 2022 and the overall rating for the NCA was 

Requires Improvement.  

 

A NCA CQC overarching action plan was developed and replicated for each Care Organisation. The table 

below give the figures of the Must and Should Do actions for the NCA, Oldham Care Organisation and 

Maternity services.  

 Must Should Total 

NCA 46 33 79 

OCO (-Maternity) 18 8 26 

Maternity 9 7 16 
 

As a Care Organisation Oldham replicated the NCA Quality and Standards Improvement group fortnightly to 

monitor the progress of the action plan and evidence submission to show completion and sustainability of 

actions. 

Progress to Date  
 All divisions have reviewed the 79 NCA Must and Should Dos 

 

 Actions have been linked to any improvement plans / work ongoing to support and monitor the 
development of improvements across the services. 

 

 A Sepsis policy has been approved with ongoing audits and a new sepsis training module has been 
developed. A Sepsis nurse has been recruited for Oldham ED with divisional representation on the OCO 
sepsis steering group.  
 

 All actions (except 6) have been grouped into themes such as medicines, training, IPC etc to enable easier 
tracking and to start to build on the governance pathways where actions will be monitored going forwards.  
 

Page 2



 

 

 Oldham have 51 completed actions which 16 as business as usual (BAU) / risk register. 26 in progress of 
which 12 are BAU/risk. Actions moving to BAU will be monitored via related workstreams and / or added 
onto a risk register (Group or Care Organisation depending on the action). 
 

 Oldham Care Organisation mandatory training is at 92.2% and My Time (appraisal) at 85.37%. 
 

 Eating disorders training across NCA (31.03.23) – initially linked to UEC, dietitian/oral health/pharmacy – 
92.59%, nurses 86.29%, NCA medical monitoring 53.85% 
 

 Oliver McGowan (part one e-learning) – 88.09% 
 

 The divisional teams are reviewing all actions and linking these to risks on the risk registers. 
 

 13 should do actions have been mapped to the must dos, the remaining 20 are unable to be mapped as 
they do not have a related must do action. 

 

 Divisions /specialities are reviewing policies and working towards harmonisation of policies across the 
NCA.  

 

 A harmonised Medicines policy has been finalised across the NCA, with maternity services working closely 
with Pharmacy colleagues to develop a maternity medicines policy. 
 

 Nursing assessment and accreditation scheme – 19 assessments have taken place with 7 wards achieving 
green status, 5 achieving amber status and 7 achieving red status. NAAS action plans are being cross 
referenced with the CQC action plan and ongoing work. The Oldham theatres had their first TAAS 
assessment and achieved amber status.  
 

Page 3

https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&appId=3b58212d-4ea5-4cbb-9ec7-396a6324fd46&reportObjectId=fcc82e06-c311-4a8f-a288-97d180b113d1&ctid=9a12677e-c2e9-4deb-a58a-ee1c59ac0161&reportPage=ReportSection4c5aa0be975574103eeb&pbi_source=copyvisualimage


 
 As part of the Urgent and Emergency Care workstream a Continuous Flow Model (CFM) has commenced 

within the division of medicine and shared learning across the NCA with other Care Organisation exploring 
the model. 

 

 The Oldham Emergency Department have implemented the Patient First Improvement dashboard / toolkit 
and this has been shared with the other EDs across the NCA for implementation. 

 

 The Maternity Improvement Board monitors the action plans / improvements within the maternity 
improvement plan. 
 

 Phase 1 and 2 BadgerNet (electronic documentation) has successfully been fully implemented across the 
maternity services.  
 

 PRactical Obstetric Multi Professional Training (PROMPT) has achieved 90% which supports direct 
improvements in outcomes for mothers and babies. 
 

 Meetings have commenced to support the UNICEF baby initiative within maternity services.  
 

 Fortnightly senior nurse walkabouts led by the Director of Nursing support the monitoring and embedding 
of changed in practice in line with the CQC must and should dos 
 

 Patient Safety Incident Response Framework (PSIRF) implementation phase commences 30 September 
2023 and transition will be completed by 31 December 2023. Training has been commenced and 
workshops are under way in preparation for the implementation phase. 

 

 The NCA will transition to a new risk management policy in September 2023. The policy aims to create 
a risk management approach that is simple, realistic and feasible for all and one which brings value in 
terms of improvement. The policy champions the importance of proactive risk management at all levels.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
MEETING: Health and 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

 
DATE: 

 
 

 
SUBJECT: CQC 
inspection outcome 

 
 

 
REPORT FROM: 
Heather Caudle, Chief 
Nurse Northern Care 
Alliance 

 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Jacqui Burrow, Deputy Chief Nurse 

  

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

Unannounced Inspection commenced on 8th August 2022 and concluded following the well 
led element of the inspection on 26th September 2022.  Prior to the inspection in July 2022, 
we had carried out a detailed self assessment against the key lines of enquiry and had 
rated ourselves as requires improvement.   

 
1.1 The CQC Inspection was carried out using a risk based approach based on data and 

intelligence gathered. Areas of concerns had flagged with CQC based on information 
from external reporting (STEIS, waiting times, quality and performance indicators), 
enquiries they had received from the public and staff, and from themes they had 
become aware of through Incidents, complaints and RCAs. In particular a focus of 
the inspection in Fairfield General was the treatment and care of people with 
disordered eating, following a PFD order issued to the organisation in November 
2021. 
 

1.2 Areas inspected by CQC: 
 

• Salford Care Organisation – Medicine, Surgery, Urgent and Emergency Care 
• Oldham Care Organisation – Medicine, Surgery, Urgent and Emergency Care and 

Maternity  
• Bury Care Organisation - Medicine, Urgent and Emergency Care  
• Rochdale – Maternity  

 
           1.3     Rochdale Care Organisation was not inspected, however maternity services based at          
Rochdale (managed by Oldham) were inspected as part of the overall maternity inspection. 

 
 

 

Page 5

        APPENDIX 2



 
 
 

 
 

1.1 Areas of good practice were also identified one of which for Royal Oldham Hospital  
 

 
 
Royal Oldham Urgent and Emergency Care 

The department had developed a training session to raise awareness around 
support for victims of domestic abuse. The program was developed in partnership 
with and delivered by a survivor of domestic abuse. The training program linked in 
with local services for survivors, familiarised staff with relevant referrals, and 
developed discreet methods of providing victims with helpline contact details. Staff 
said this training provided them with confidence in supporting victims and using 
professional curiosity to raise or challenge signs of domestic abuse. 

 

1.2 2.0 ISSUES  
 

When NCA became a legal entity -  Salford’s current rating of outstanding was adopted for 
the NCA, and any previous Pennine Acute Trust overall Ratings were no longer applicable. 
Ratings were given for each core service inspected but an overall rating for Bury, Rochdale 
and Oldham were not given. 

 
2.1  The overall rating for the Northern Care Alliance following the inspection is Requires 

Improvement.   
 

2.2 The final report was published on the 22nd December 2022  and this was 
accompanied by a statement made by the Chief Executive Officer that 
acknowledged the report findings and that some improvements were already 
underway. There were 120 recommendations made within the report, categorised as 
‘Must Do’ or ‘Should Do’ actions which now need to be addressed to ensure that the 
NCA is not placed at risk of breaching a Health and Social Care Act Regulation or 
one of the CQC Fundamental Standards. We must also ensure that the care and 
safety of patients remains one of our key priorities alongside the wellbeing of staff. 

 
2.3 Overall Rating for the Northern Care Alliance  

 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
2.4  Several main themes emerged from the inspection which alongside the must and 

should do actions will be included as part of the overall improvement plan.  These 
include - Visibility of senior leaders; although this did not emerge as a theme for 
Fairfield general,  Culture, Information Management, Governance, Staffing, 
Mandatory Training, Patient Flow and Waiting Times, Policy Management, 
Medicines Management, Shared Learning 

 
3.0 CONCLUSION  
 

3.1 Under Regulation 17(3) of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) 
Regulations 2014, CQC have asked for a written report of the action we are going to take to 
meet the associated regulations and any other legislation. This is currently in development 
and due for submission with the CQC by 31st January 2023. 

 
3.2 To mitigate any gaps in controls, optimise opportunities to harmonise clinical practices across 

the Trust, identify areas of good practice and to link with improvement work that is already 
underway, actions have been mapped across all sites regardless of the initial core service that 
the CQC originally identified recorded the action against so that we can ensure that we 
address issues in their entirety. Learning from all areas inspected will be applied across the 
entire organisation; the result for Oldham being that some of the developments will enhance 
work already in train rather than only addressing areas in deficit.  

 
3.3 As part of the improvement plan each regulation has been an assigned to an Executive lead 

for monitoring and support. 
 

3.4 A Quality Standards & Improvement Group has been established to monitor and oversee the 
progress of the overarching action plan – chaired by the Deputy Chief Nurse.  The Group 
Assurance and Compliance Team will provide oversight to the action plan on behalf of the 
NCA and provide reports on progress to EQPC, Audit Committee and Group Board and 
partners as required.   

 
4.0 SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS  
 
 To outline any safeguarding implications in relation to the report. 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



we’re making health
and social care better
Annual Report 2022–23

Together

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Message from our Chair

About us

Highlights from our year

How we’ve made a difference this year

10 years of improving care

Our Healthwatch Hero

Listening to your experiences

Hearing from all communities

Advice and information

Volunteers

Finances and future priorities

Statutory statements

Message from our Manager

"In the last ten years, the health and 
social care landscape has changed 
dramatically, but the dedication of local 
Healthwatch hasn't. Your local Healthwatch 
has worked tirelessly to make sure the 
views of local people are heard, and NHS 
and social care leaders use your feedback 
to make care better."

Louise Ansari, Healthwatch National Director

Contents

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-232

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

14

17

19

21

23

27

Page 10



Message from our Chair

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-233

2022/3 was a challenging year 
for some local residents. 
Healthwatch Oldham received 
feedback expressing concerns 
about the effects of the rising 
cost of living on health and also 
regarding difficulties with 
accessing local health and 
care services as our colleagues 
work hard to recover from the 
impact of the pandemic.

Jacquie Wood
Healthwatch Oldham Chair

Against this backdrop, our staff have been working to hear the voices of local 
people and to represent and act on this feedback. 

Our work is important to ensure local people can share information about 
their health and care experiences and we must make sure this includes 
people from communities that may not always be heard. So, in 2022/3, we 
reached out to all Oldham communities via our bi-monthly survey, “The 
Healthwatch Oldham 100” and through targeted surveys.  The information we 
obtain from these surveys helps to identify key themes on a range of 
subjects that matter to you and that we can further explore. Thank you to 
everyone who took the time to respond and share your views.  Next year we 
will build upon this work and seek to improve our engagement with people 
with disabilities, asylum seekers, the LGBTQ+ community, and young people.

In 2022/23 we used your feedback to further explore the experiences of 
people living with dementia and to publish our findings. We were also 
involved in projects with Healthwatch Rochdale to review the experiences of 
partners and family members in local maternity services and with the former 
Oldham Clinical Commissioning Group to help evaluate how Patient 
Participation Groups (PPGs) in GP practices were working. We will ensure 
feedback is shared with service providers and track how it is used to develop 
services and address your ideas and concerns. We could also take forward 
your views on remote appointments with the Northern Care Alliance and 
work with them and others to develop guidance for future use. 

Lifting of Covid 19 restrictions also meant that we were able to resume our 
work in hosting events with different community groups to help access 
health services and promote healthy living.  A forum for women’s health and 
cancer screening within the British Pakistani community was very well 
attended and received excellent feedback. Please look out for future events 
in the coming year.

Page 11



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-234

Jacquie Wood
Healthwatch Oldham Chair

Last year saw changes to the NHS infrastructure and Integrated Care 
Partnerships (ICPs) were created to plan and deliver joined-up health and 
care services. Oldham is part of the Greater Manchester ICP and works with 
the other nine Greater Manchester (GM) boroughs to improve the health and 
wellbeing of GM people.  Healthwatch Oldham plays an active part in these 
new arrangements at both a local level and as part of the new Healthwatch 
in Greater Manchester Network. Being part of this network means we can 
participate in joint projects and share intelligence. 

In 2022/3 we used the feedback you provided on access to dental services in 
Oldham to contribute to a GM report that outlined key issues and how 
recommendations made by Healthwatch England for future NHS dental care 
may be taken forward. We look forward to working with our GM colleagues in 
the coming year to represent local views, particularly about Mental Health 
and the care of Children and Young People.  

Last year also saw changes to the Board of Healthwatch Oldham. Our former 
Chair, John Starkey, moved to pastures new as did several long-standing 
Board members. All our Board members are volunteers who provide their 
expertise, time, commitment and energy to help us oversee the work of 
Healthwatch Oldham and I would like to thank them for their years of service. 
After a successful campaign, we have recruited new Board members to help 
us take forward our work.  We want our Board to be truly representative of 
local communities and so we are still open to expressions of interest from 
people interested in this work (please see our website for further details).

Our work would not be possible without the continued hard work of our staff 
and volunteers. I am proud to work with them and thank them all for their 
ongoing dedication. I would also like to thank Action Together, which hosts 
Healthwatch Oldham, and all our funders and partner organisations for your 
continued support. I very much look forward to continuing to work with you all 
over the next year. 

J H Wood

Page 12



About us

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-235

Healthwatch Oldham is your local health and 
social care champion.
We make sure NHS leaders and decision-makers hear your voice and use 
your feedback to improve care. We can also help you to find reliable and 
trustworthy information and advice.

Our values are:
• Work as a team

We will work effectively together and support each other 
to work flexibly as a team in a compassionate and 
empathic way.

• Listening and Including
We are here for everyone. We will listen to, engage with 
and include local people to hear everyone’s voice 
regarding their ideas for change in health and social 
care.

• Strengthen Others
We want local people to have the confidence and 
information to access the care they need. We will act 
upon the information, feedback and ideas shared with 
us to enable this to happen.

• Be True
We will analyse and report upon the experiences and 
feedback we receive from local people and services to 
honestly represent their views and to independently 
make recommendations for change.

Our mission
To champion the voices of and work together with local 
people to influence positive change and to ensure their 
health and care experience is the best that it can be.

Page 13



Year in review

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-236

Reaching out
611 people
shared their experiences of health and social care 
services with us, helping to raise awareness of issues and 
improve care.

1,388 people
came to us for clear advice and information about topics 
such as mental health and the cost-of-living crisis.

Making a difference to care
We published

5 reports
about the improvements people would like to see in health and 
social care services.

Our most popular report was

Living with Dementia Infographic
which highlighted the struggles people face with dementia.

Health and care that works for you
We’re lucky to have

8 Volunteers
outstanding volunteers who gave up over 2 days to make care 
better for our community.

We’re funded by our local authority. In 2022-23 we received

£143,088
which is the same as the previous year.

We currently employ

5 staff
who help us carry out our work.

Page 14



We carried out a specific project 
looking into maternity services 

from the point of view of 
partners.

We held our Health and Wellbeing 
Event at the European Islamic Centre 
which had 193 people in attendance.

W
inter

How we’ve made
a difference this year

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-237

We continued our support of 
the Rochdale and Oldham 

Maternity Services 
Partnership.

Announced our People’s 
Choice Award winners and 
created a video where we 

presented the main award on 
a local health walk.

We completed 4 interviews 
and hosted a focus group as 
part of a project looking into 

people’s experience of 
domestic abuse

We worked with colleagues at the asylum 
seeker and refugee network to run a series of 

targeted engagement sessions to better 
understand the health and social care issues 

for people seeking asylum or who have 
refugee status.

We hosted a Women’s Health 
Event looking into cancer 

screening.

We continued our support of 
local health walks within the 

Oldham Borough.

Spring
Sum

m
er

A
utum

n

Page 15



10 years of improving care

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-238

This year marks a special milestone for Healthwatch. Over the last ten years, 
people have shared their experiences, good and bad, to help improve health 
and social care. A big thank you to all our Healthwatch Heroes that have 
stepped up and inspired change. Here are a few of our highlights:

Patient Transport
In 2014, we worked alongside 

our colleagues across the 
Greater Manchester Network 
to help raise concerns about 

Patient Transport services and 
this helped in setting 

recommendations that NWAS 
followed up on to ensure 

patients didn’t experience the 
same issues.

How have we made care better, together?

Active Health Outdoors 
Forum
In 2019, we held a public forum 
where over 1,000 people 
attended to find out more 
about how to stay active 
outdoors and learn more about 
services available within the 
area.

COVID-19
We completed a large project 

looking into people’s 
experiences throughout the 

different stages of the COVID-
19 pandemic which provided 

knowledge and information to 
the Oldham Care Organisation.

Remote 
Appointments Report
Following on from a successful 
project we did on looking at 
Digital health, we worked with 
Northern Care Alliance on the 
challenges faced with remote 
appointments after the 
COVID-19 pandemic. This 
helped to produce a user 
guide for people to attend 
remote appointments.

CQC Maternity Project
In 2023, we completed a 

project with the Care Quality 
Commission, looking into the 

experiences of maternity 
services from the point of view 

of a partner. This has helped 
services to understand their 

views and thoughts and is 
being fed int a larger piece of 
work carried out by the CQC.

Page 16



Celebrating Jo Taylor - a hero in our local community
Jo is our Healthwatch Hero. Jo is living with secondary breast cancer and 
tirelessly works to raise awareness of the condition and its symptoms along 
with the promotion of improvements that need to be made to support those 
living with cancer.

She shared her story with us in our COVID-19 report, supported us with the 
remote appointments work and hosted a focus group, delivered a presentation 
at our 2017 Living Well with Cancer Forum, helped us with our questions about 
the living with cancer survey and she is now helping us to understand and gain 
insight around Secondary Cancer pathway.

Jo runs retreats for people with Breast Cancer Diagnosis, runs MEUPUK, 
advocates for primary and secondary breast cancer patients, campaigns 
tirelessly for better health care and raises the importance of access to 
treatments and drugs and profiling of secondary breast cancer patients.

Without Jo, Oldham residents and people all over the world would be far less 
informed about cancer pathways and we would like to thank her for all her 
hard work.

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-239

Healthwatch Hero

Page 17



Services can’t make improvements without 
hearing your views. That’s why over the last year 
we have made listening to feedback from all 
areas of the community a priority. This allows us 
to understand the full picture, and feed this back 
to services and help them improve.

Listening to your 
experiences

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2310 Page 18



Advocating for fairer 
NHS dentistry

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2311

NHS dentistry is in desperate need of reform. Through the Greater 
Manchester Healthwatch Network, we are championing key reforms that 
Healthwatch England has set are much needed.
With living costs on the rise, findings suggest widening health inequalities as 
people in every part of the country struggle to access and pay for dental care. 
We continue to see a shortage of NHS appointments, which had a detrimental 
effect on people with the lowest incomes the most, meaning they were less likely 
to be able to receive dental treatment than those on higher incomes.

Changes to NHS dental contracts
We supported Healthwatch England on renewed calls to NHS England and 
the Department of Health and Social Care to put a reformed dental contract 
in place.

What difference will this make for Oldham 
residents?
We have worked as part of the Greater Manchester Healthwatch Network to 
push the collective case on dentistry experiences locally. This includes:

As well as working with system partners and communicating updates to local 
people directly, we will be meeting with local MPs for Oldham who want to 
understand the local pressures to include in parliamentary discussions/ 
action. 

• Increasing the payments for dentists when treating patients with 
complex needs, for example, people needing work done on three 
or more teeth.

• Requiring dental practices to regularly update the national directory 
as to whether they are taking new NHS patients.

• Moving resources from dental practices that are underperforming.

• A more rapid and radical reform of the way dentistry is commissioned 
and provided.

• Using the reform of commissioning to tackle the twin crises of access 
and affordability.

• Greater clarity in the information about NHS dentistry.
• Look at using dental practices to support people’s general health.

Page 19



Health and Wellbeing Event
February 2023

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2312

On 28 February, we, alongside colleagues from BAME Connect held a Health 
and Wellbeing Event at the European Islamic Centre. 
The event had a range of stalls and interactive sessions reflecting the health, 
care and support services available to Oldham residents. The event had a range 
of stalls and interactive sessions reflecting Oldham health, care and support 
services that residents can access. There was also a range of taster sessions 
which included Nordic Walking, health checks, static kayaking and funky fitness 
dancing.

1. 193 people attended the event from all regions of Oldham and surrounding 
areas.

2. Over 30 service providers were in attendance on the day to provide 
information on their support offer for residents.

3. There was a wide range of people representing different ethnic backgrounds in 
attendance including; Pakistani/British Pakistani, White British, Bengali/British 
Bengali, Iranian and Afghani.

“I thought the event was a great illustration of the amazing number of 
local organisations in Oldham that support our residents and 
communities to improve their wellbeing.

It was fantastic to see the energy in the room and also the number of 
organisations that were looking to support our communities to move 
more so that our residents could benefit from being active. I look forward 
to seeing more in the future.”
Pritesh Patel
Sport Leisure & Wellbeing Service Manager at Oldham Council

Summary of the day:

What difference will this make?
It was great to see people taking the time to go around the stalls and take part in all 
the interactive sessions. Services fed back that it was also an excellent way to connect 
with other Oldham providers to find out what they do, how people can access them, 
where they are based and whom they are for.
Due to the event falling on a day of local school strikes, we encouraged people to bring 
their children to reduce barriers to attendance. There were around 20 young people 
under the age of 18 in attendance throughout the day.

Page 20



Three ways we have made a 
difference for the community

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2313

Throughout our work we gather information about 
health inequalities by speaking to people whose 
experiences aren’t often heard.

Maternity Services Project
A project delivered in partnership with the Care Quality Commission 
has provided a unique view of maternity services.
This project was designed to allow us to obtain the views of maternity 
services from a partner’s point of view. Knowing that this is an area 
where feedback is lacking, we completed an online survey and online 
focus groups with partners so that they could explain what went well 
and what needs to be improved moving forward. 
The work completed is now being included in a larger project looking 
at maternity services and ways to improve the patient experience.

Health Forums
Forums to engage with people about their experiences. 
Our forums are targeted to capture experiences and share 
information with people we hear from less through other surveys, e.g. 
the Pakistani population through the forum held with BAME Connect 
and hosted by the European Islamic Centre. The impact here has 
been people from marginalised communities, have been able to 
speak with a range of services and gather information and support 
around several health-related areas.

Remote Appointments- Northern Care Alliance
Understanding the experiences of remote appointments
Following a period of engagement, we sent recommendations to the 
NCA. A task and finish group was set up by the NCA to consider the 
report and its recommendations. The Healthwatch Oldham report was 
shared as part of the patient experience update within the NCA, and 
this has now been the foundation for the best practice guide to 
support patients with remote appointments. 

Page 21



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2314

Over the past year, we have worked hard to make sure we 
hear from everyone within our local area. We consider it 
important to reach out to the communities that we hear from 
less frequently, to gather their feedback and make sure their 
voices are heard and services meet their needs.

This year we have reached different communities by:

• Hosting a women’s health event aimed at South Asian Bengali/British Bengali 
people and providing cancer screening information.

• Hosting our health and wellbeing event at the European Islamic Centre in 
partnership with BAME Connect gave us a chance to explain service provision 
where the majority of the audience is from Pakistani or Bangladeshi heritage.

• Working with BAME Connect to work with their members and focus on their 
wellbeing including social isolation.

• Working with the Care Quality Commission, we were able to obtain the views of 
partners and family members of new mothers regarding their experiences of 
maternity services.

• We published a survey targeting the LGBTQ+ community around cancer 
screening as a person who identifies as transgender or 
non-binary person. 

Hearing from
all communities

Page 22



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2315

Lymphoedema Support Service
A lady contacted us about a misdiagnosis that 
meant she had to attend urgent care and that her 
Lymphoedema condition had worsened. She had 
unsuccessful conversations with the practice 
manager as they didn’t have anyone specialising in 
this field. 
We said we would check with the Integrated Care 
Board (ICB) if they knew of anyone who had a 
specialism in this field. The ICB replied and wasn’t 
aware of any GPs with a specialism in 
Lymphoedema, however, suggested the Tissue 
Viability Service. Lady was delighted with access to 
this service. 

“Many thanks for all the advice you, and members of your team, 
have given me over the past few weeks. 
Lymphoedema in my area is managed by the Tissue Viability 
Service and I have had excellent care from this service, and now if 
I have any problems, I contact them directly which is wonderful.”

Domestic abuse project helps 
participants recognise issues and 
access support
Healthwatch Oldham ran focus groups as part of a domestic 
abuse (in older adults) project. Domestic abuse might not 
usually be an area Healthwatch would specifically focus on, 
however we decided to work in this area as part of a 
partnership with Oldham Adults Safeguarding Board in order 
to deliver on our safeguarding priorities and the key link that 
domestic abuse has as a social determinant of health. The 
focus groups form part of a Domestic Abuse Partnership 
Project coordinated by Oldham Adult Safeguarding Board 
which was funded by the Ministry of Justice.

This also includes one-to-one interviews and surveys, which are designed to 
raise awareness of domestic abuse and gain further insight into the issue.
The focus groups are designed to give participants the chance to share their 
lived experience and learn about support services available and include 
representatives of women from South Asian communities, who are able to
share the lived experiences through both personal and professional 
connections.

Continued on the next page...

Page 23



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2316

Domestic abuse project helps participants recognise
issues and access support continued...

Recently, one woman of South Asian heritage was prompted to reflected on 
her own relationship after attending one of the sessions and came to the 
realisation that she was in a coercive and controlling situation. She explained 
that she thinks this is sometimes more difficult for South Asian women to 
recognise such situations due to cultural barriers, self-conditioning and some 
women accepting such behaviours as normal.
However, we helped her find appropriate local domestic abuse support 
services and as a result, she is now working towards making changes to 
improve her situation and seeking a solution. The individual concerned 
thanked Healthwatch Oldham and the Domestic Abuse Partnership 
Project coordinated by adult safeguarding for putting on the focus groups and 
helping her access the relevant support.
Her participation in the groups helped her to understand what domestic abuse 
is, the signs of domestic abuse and what support was available to everyone in 
Oldham and how to access this. This was a powerful outcome and shows how 
a combination of different engagement methods are sometimes needed to 
help people understand and access the support they need.

Page 24



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2317

If you feel lost and don’t know where to turn, 
Healthwatch is here for you. In times of worry or 
stress, we can provide confidential support and free 
information to help you understand your options and 
get the help you need. Whether it’s finding an NHS 
dentist, how to make a complaint or choosing a good 
care home for a loved one – you can count on us.

This year we’ve helped people by:

• Providing up-to-date information people can trust, especially through our 
health forums. We linked people with services so they can provide up-to-date 
information about their offer and how people can access it 

• Helping people access the services they need
• Helping people access NHS dentistry
• Supporting people to look after their health during the cost 

of living crisis

Advice and 
information

Page 25



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2318

Help to find dental care in Oldham
Throughout the year, Healthwatch Oldham has continued to receive 
information requests from people trying to obtain an NHS Dentist.
There are still very limited NHS dental options available within the Oldham 
Borough. However, we have been able to keep people informed of when 
practices are able to take on new NHS patients.
We have been keeping people up to date when we find out which practices are 
taking on NHS patients and we have been able to refer people to the Emergency 
dental service and share information from the GM Dental team on updates via 
our newsletter and social media pages.

“Thank you for your prompt response regarding my dental 
query I have been able to find an appointment.”
Stephen, Oldham resident

Healthwatch Oldham continues to raise these concerns about the lack of NHS 
dental provision and shares any communications from service providers to the 
local population. 

Supporting people to look after their health 
during the cost-of-living crisis

The cost-of-living crisis has impacted everyone and so we have run two events in 
partnership with BAME Connect this year which have focused on Health and 
wellbeing including physical, mental, nutritional, and financial health for all.
By holding these events we are connecting Oldham residents to local services that 
offer free health and wellbeing services. This helps people make informed choices 
about improving their or supports them to access help for themselves or a family 
member. As the events are held in community venues, they are easy to access and 
make people feel safe. 
The events support people to sit down and talk to a person from the health/care 
service informally, find out more about them and self-refer to the service. 
We also have some activities at the events so people are able to take part in these 
too.

Page 26



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2319

We’re supported by a team of amazing 
volunteers who are at the heart of what we do. 
Thanks to their efforts in the community, we’re 
able to understand what is working and what 
needs improving.

This year our volunteers:
• Hosted information stalls to promote Healthwatch Oldham and what we 

have to offer
• Continued to guide the work of Healthwatch Oldham by offering their 

views and support as part of the Governance Board
• Reviewed GP and dentist websites to review accessibility
• Collected the most up-to-date information on changes to services, 

such as whether NHS dental appointments were available at a practice

Volunteering

Page 27



Issie
Issie has recently joined our Healthwatch Oldham 
Governance Board and is a committed housing 
professional, having worked in the social housing 
sector for the last 16 years, and volunteered as a 
member of the Chartered Institute of Housing 
Northwest regional group since 2015.
Issie is interested in the link between health, housing 
and social care, and is passionate about these three 
areas not working in silos, but in harmony together. 
She has worked in Oldham for the last seven years and 
is very well connected to a network of different 
organisations, community groups and people. She 
believes having local insight is one of her strengths as 
a Healthwatch Oldham board member.
She holds an undergraduate degree from The 
University of Manchester and a master’s degree in 
Housing Practice from the University of Salford.

Kath
"I have been a volunteer with Healthwatch Oldham 
since 2016. I got involved because the work is aimed at 
improving services for the people of Oldham and it 
gave me the opportunity to meet lots of interesting 
people from a wide range of backgrounds. Before 
volunteering for Healthwatch, I had no idea of the many 
support groups and services that are available in the 
area. Being able to participate in a service which 
signposts people to access the help they need is very 
rewarding. The team have always made me feel very 
welcome and I like the way I can fit my voluntary work 
around other commitments.”

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2320

Do you feel inspired?
We are always on the lookout for new 
volunteers, so please get in touch today.

www.healthwatcholdham.co.uk

0161 622 5700

info@healthwatcholdham.co.uk

Page 28



Finance and future priorities

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2321

To help us carry out our work we receive funding from our local authority 
under the Health and Social Care Act 2012.

Our income and expenditure

Next steps
This year marked the 10th anniversary since Healthwatch was established, and at 
Healthwatch Oldham we are proud to have played our part in listening to local 
people and amplifying the patient voice with the Oldham Health and Care 
System.

Whilst recognising the huge challenges faced by the system have been 
exacerbated since the Covid-19 pandemic, we are more determined than ever, 
to ensure we work with local providers and commissioners for there to remain a 
strong focus on tackling health inequalities. in doing so we will always endeavour 
to ensure those who identify as being ‘seldom heard’ are championed in all 
possible ways by Healthwatch Oldham.

We are really pleased to report that the Oldham Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee has agreed to work with us, to better understand the experience of 
Asylum Seekers and Refugees accessing Primary Care in Oldham, we hope to 
carry out the engagement work and report back our findings over the coming 
year.

Income Expenditure

Contracted sum 
from Oldham 
Council

£143,088 Salary Cost £122,814

Additional  Project income £15,566 Non-salary Cost £6,851

Management and 
Overhead recovery

£32,000

Total income £158,654 Total expenditure £161,665

Page 29



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2322

Top three priorities for 2023-24
1. Improving Primary Care access for Asylum Seekers and Refugees, by 

collating their views about their current challenges. 

2. Establish an Oldham Youth Healthwatch and develop a specific platform for 
young people to voice their views on the local health and social care 
system. 

3. Tackling health inequalities- Continue to use experiences and data to 
identify gaps and issues on access, produce reports and work with ICP/ICS 
and PCNs. We will help reach key demographics such as communities 
facing racial injustice and the LGBT community whose views are under-
represented and ensure services are appropriate for them. 

We will also be working with the Primary Care Commissioning Committee to 
support a review of the current PPG (Patient Participation Groups) across 
Oldham, and where appropriate work with GP Practice’s to help take their work 
PPG work forward and reach communities that are more reflective of our local 
demographic’s. 
Over the coming year, we are looking forward to launching our HWO Youthwatch, 
which will endeavour to champion the voices of our young people across the 
health and social care system. 
In line with this, we will launch a young people’s mental health survey, which will 
allow the system to understand in greater depth the experiences and challenges 
faced by local young people when trying to access mental health services.  
In addition to this over the next year, our work will include building on the positive 
work around the Oldham and Rochdale Maternity Voices Partnership and 
strengthening our engagement with the LGBTQ+ community through widening 
responses to our ongoing Cancer Screening survey. 
Our work plan also includes objectives around facilitating a project to improve 
understanding of the experiences of Hospital Discharge and to understand the 
gaps in service provision for secondary care cancer patients.
During this next year, we would like to build on our recent successes with key 
external projects, with some a commitment to generate income to further 
develop our work and reach across Oldham. 

Page 30



Healthwatch Oldham, Action Together C/O, Medtia
Place, 80 Union Street, Oldham, OL1 1DJ.

Healthwatch Oldham uses the Healthwatch Trademark 
when undertaking our statutory 
activities as covered by the licence agreement.

Statutory 
statements

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2323 Page 31



The way we work

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2324

Involvement of volunteers and lay people in 
our governance and decision-making
Our Healthwatch Board consists of six members (we are continuing to 
recruit to our board) who work on a voluntary basis to provide direction, 
oversight and scrutiny of our activities. 
Our Board ensures that decisions about priority areas of work reflect the 
concerns and interests of our diverse local community. Throughout 2022/23 
the Board met four times and made decisions on matters such as our 
visions and values and our Enter and View Policy.

Methods and systems used across 
the year to obtain people’s experiences
We use a wide range of approaches to ensure that as many people as possible 
can provide us with insight into their experience of using services. During 2022/23 
we have been available by phone, and email, provided a web form on our 
website and through social media, as well as attending meetings of community 
groups and forums. 
We ensure that this annual report is made available to as many members of the 
public and partner organisations as possible. We will publish it on our website 
and across all our social media platforms including Twitter and Facebook. We 
have also committed to creating a video summary of our annual report, which is 
being actioned with our Communications team following the submission of this 
report. We will be asking our host organization, (Action Together) to share this 
with their members across the Oldham locality. We will also share this with 
members of the Oldham ICP, the Health and Wellbeing Board, Health Scrutiny 
and key stakeholders including all providers and commissioners. 

Responses to recommendations
All providers have responded to requests for information and have accepted 
recommendations in our reports. There were no issues or recommendations 
escalated by us to Healthwatch England Committee, so no resulting reviews or 
investigations have taken place.

Taking people’s experiences to decision-makers
We ensure that people who can make decisions about services hear about the 
insight and experiences that have been shared with us. In our local authority area for 
example we take information to Health Scrutiny Committee, Oldham ICP Board and 
Health and Wellbeing Board. 
We also give insight and experiences to decision-makers in the Greater Manchester 
Integrated Care System. For example, we also share information and provide 
challenges at GM ICP at the ICS level and explain where this is in collaboration with 
the Greater Manchester Healthwatch Network covering the ICS footprint.  We also 
share our data with Healthwatch England to help address health and care issues at 
a national level.

Page 32



Project /  activity Changes made to services

Asylum Seeker and Refugees 
engagement around Primary Care 
access via the British Red Cross.

Following challenges that have been 
shared with us by refugees and asylum 
seekers in relation to accessibility of 
primary care, we have encouraged 
Oldham ICP to link with Doctors of the 
World’s Safe surgeries initiative. 
This initiative aims to improve access to 
primary care for people in vulnerable 
situations, including people who are 
homeless, asylum seekers and refugees. 
We are pleased to report initial steps 
have been taken to engage with this 
initiative, and over the next year we will 
work to show there are strong tangible 
outcomes as a result from this.  

Oldham and Rochdale Maternity Voices 
Partnership.

Following feedback and service users 
feedback the MVP raised concerns that 
6 week checks post-natal checks were 
not happening. This feedback was 
reported to primary care teams and the 
checks have now been re-introduced 
and are also included now as part of 
the safeguarding process. 

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2325

Healthwatch representatives
Healthwatch Oldham is represented on the Oldham Health and Wellbeing Board 
by our Manager. During 2022/23 our representative has effectively carried out 
this role by ensuring patient voice and patient experience are at the heart of all 
debates, and decisions.
In particular, the Manager through his input at the Health and Well Being Board 
has provided contribution to the development of the Oldham Health Inequalities 
Plan. Healthwatch Oldham is represented on the Oldham Integrated Care 
Partnerships and Oldham Integrated Care Boards. The Healthwatch Oldham 
Manager also represents us on the Oldham Mental Health Locality Board, the 
Northern Care Alliance Partnership Board, and on the Oldham Safeguarding 
Adults Board. Our Chair represents Healthwatch Oldham at the GM Healthwatch 
Network meetings.

2022–2023 Outcomes

Page 33



Project /  activity Changes made to services

GP Out-of-Hours Support. Following qualitative evidence received 
by Healthwatch Oldham in October last 
year, we discovered that as of 1st of 
October 2022, the 7-day Access service 
had ceased and been replaced by a 6-
day out-of-hours service, now operated 
by the individual PCN’s. The patient 
experiences reported when people 
phoned the 7- day access number they 
were told to contact their GP. This 
caused confusion, especially in the 
evenings or at weekends when patients 
knew the GP Practices wouldn’t be able 
to respond. We contacted Oldham 
ICP, who apologised for the lack of 
communication with Oldham 
patients. We made enquiries and 
checked GP websites. We found that 
many had not been updated with the 
contact numbers and new details of the 
service and that some practice staff 
were not aware of this either. This led to 
feedback across Primary Care and 
action was taken to ensure all 
information and details were up to 
date.

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2326

2022–2023 Outcomes

Page 34



Message from our Manager

Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2327

I would like to begin by 
paying tribute and giving 
special thanks to our 
hardworking Healthwatch 
Oldham team who work so 
hard to ensure we 
continue to champion the 
patient voice of the local 
community in Oldham. 

Tamoor Tariq
Healthwatch Oldham Manager

Our amazing team works so hard to ensure Healthwatch Oldham is at the 
heart of change and influence but none of our work would be possible 
without colleagues in Action Together, our Healthwatch Oldham Board, the 
residents of Oldham who participate in our surveys or the many partners and 
stakeholders across Oldham who work with us to deliver on the needs for the 
good people of Oldham.

This year we sadly said goodbye to several board members, who have 
served us diligently for many years, I would like to take this opportunity to 
thank them all. I am delighted to report our former Vice Chair, Jacquie Wood 
has become our new Interim Chair, with her background in nursing and 
organisational development she will help Healthwatch Oldham go from 
strength to strength.

We will continue to respond to the challenges that have been presented by 
the COVID-19 recovery, having regular input into the Health Inequalities 
agenda in Oldham.  

Through our work and engagement, we have endeavoured to ensure that 
Healthwatch Oldham is a key strategic partner as the Oldham system has 
developed its role and position within the Greater Manchester ICS system 
and amongst the national changes more broadly. In the coming year, we will 
continue to ensure we are at the heart of championing patient voice, and 
patient experience. I would like to take this opportunity to thank everyone 
who has worked with us and helped us deliver on our work plan over the past 
year.

Page 35



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2328

It has been another busy year for us. Earlier in the year we launched our 
Healthwatch 100 ‘Living with Dementia, understanding ‘your experiences of 
dementia as a patient or as a carer.’ Following this, we wanted to progress 
our work around engagement with seldom-heard communities, through 
understanding people’s experiences of cancer screening with the LGBTQ+ 
community. We launched the survey last year, and this remains open as we 
are hoping to reach more people in the coming months.

I am pleased to report that our work and engagement with our Maternity 
Services has gone from strength to strength. We continue to be part of the 
Rochdale and Oldham Maternity Voice Partnership and attend their 
meetings regularly as well as cascading important across Oldham on behalf 
of the MVP. During the last year, I am delighted to report both Healthwatch 
Oldham and Healthwatch Rochdale were commissioned by the CQC to carry 
out engagement work to understand the experiences of partners and family 
members who have supported their loved ones through the maternity 
journey. We did this through a survey, and facilitated focus groups, to 
encourage discussion and engagement around this important area. This will 
feed into a national piece of work by the CQC and is one of four strands they 
are looking into.

From a sub-regional point of view, we have been active across the Greater 
Manchester areas of work.

We are an active member of the Greater Manchester Healthwatch Network, 
we have been part of several key highlights for the network, including, 
contributing to an all-age strategy, formalising a 3-year partnership 
agreement with Greater Manchester ICS, contributing to the development of 
the Greater Manchester Integrated Care Quality Strategy and delivered on 
our commitment to continuing, to raise concerns regarding access to NHS 
dentistry. We have also facilitated local survey responses to influence the 
GMICS strategy and the Greater Manchester Integrated Care Partnership 
Strategy.

We are pleased to report and successful partnership with Lees Brook GP 
Surgery. Leesbrook Surgery reached out to Healthwatch Oldham; asking us to 
carry out engagement with their patients to understand patients’ views 
about their matron service. Over the last few years, the practice made 
staffing changes to the Matron Service, and from having a part-time matron 
service offer this changed to full-time. Therefore, our engagement focused 
on finding out what the patient’s experiences were of the service on the 
ground given the changes and ascertaining for the surgery if the service was 
impactful, as well as looking for any obvious areas for improvement. Our 
report found the staff structure/ change had been an overwhelming 
success.

Page 36



Healthwatch Oldham Annual Report 2022-2329

Healthwatch Oldham is determined that we continue to make a difference in 
how health and social care is designed and delivered in Oldham and that 
patients, service users and their families are at the heart of this. Now more 
than ever we must rebuild and renew parts of our NHS systems and 
structures.

We hope next year to report on the work of the proposed Patient Participation 
Group Oldham-wide audit, which hopes to work with the local Primary Care 
Team given some GP Practices hasn’t been able to reignite these important 
forums, for patient voice. During the next year, we will also report on the 
launch of our Healthwatch Oldham Youth-watch as well as other key areas in 
our work plan.

If you would like to know more about what we do, or about our work that is 
planned for the year ahead, please don’t hesitate to get in touch. Finally, a 
heartfelt thank you to the local Oldham community for continuing to work 
with us, and our partners and stakeholders for giving us the space and ability 
to play a key role in the local system. None of this would be possible without 
the support of our Board, and our host organisation Action Together, this 
important setup for our Healthwatch enables us to try our best and helps us 
to take our work from strength to strength.

T. Tariq
Tamoor Tariq
Healthwatch Oldham Manager

Page 37



Healthwatch Oldhjam
Action Together C/O
Medtia Place, 80 Union Street
Oldham
OL1 1DJ

www.healthwatcholdham.co.uk 

t: 0161 622 5700

e: info@healthwatcholdham.co.uk

@HWOldham

Facebook.com/HealthwatchOldham 

@HWOldham

Page 38


	Agenda
	5 Northern Care Alliance - Care Quality Commission - Inspection Report for Oldham
	Scrutiny Report Oldham Cares_ (005) (July Version)

	6 Healthwatch Annual Report 2022-23
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Contents
	Slide 3: Message from our Chair
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: About us
	Slide 6: Year in review
	Slide 7: How we’ve made a difference this year
	Slide 8:  10 years of improving care
	Slide 9
	Slide 10: Listening to your experiences
	Slide 11: Advocating for fairer  NHS dentistry
	Slide 12: Health and Wellbeing Event February 2023
	Slide 13: Three ways we have made a difference for the community
	Slide 14: Hearing from all communities
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17: Advice and information
	Slide 18
	Slide 19: Volunteering
	Slide 20
	Slide 21: Finance and future priorities
	Slide 22
	Slide 23: Statutory statements
	Slide 24: The way we work
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27: Message from our Manager
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30




